JAMES P. SCANLAN
2638 39th Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20007
(202) 337-3927

June 9, 1997

BY FACSI M LE

Larry D. Thonpson, Esq.

I ndependent Counsel

O fice of Independent Counsel
444 North Capitol Street
Suite 519

Washi ngton, D.C. 20001

Re: United States of Anerica v. Deborah Gore Dean, Crim No.
92-181-TFH (D.D. C.)

Dear M. Thonpson:

This letter concerns three matters whi ch are addressed under
t he headi ngs bel ows.

1. The Continuing Failure to State Wether the Docunent
You Represented To Be a True Copy of Governnment Exhibit

25 Is in Fact a True Copy of That Exhibit

It is now nore than two nonths since you sent me your Apri
3, 1997 letter stating that you were taking under advi senment ny
letter of March 31, 1997, in which | asked you to state whether
t he docunment you had represented to ne to be a true copy of the
original of Governnent Exhibit 25 was in fact a true copy of that
exhibit. It is also tw weeks since | faxed you ny |letter dated
May 26, 1997, questioning your failure to further respond to ny
| etter and once again pointing out that any delay in your
responding in order to delay or interfere wwth ny efforts to
reveal that the Independent Counsel deceived the court and the
defense on this matter would itself violate 18 U S.C. § 1001.

Let ne point out that we have a relationship concerning this
matter that ordinarily would i npose a responsibility on your part
to pronptly respond to ny question. In addition to your witing
me on February 18, 1996, stating that you would review the
materials | provided you concerning this and other matters where
I mai ntai ned | ndependent Counsel attorneys deceived the court, in
recently refusing ny request to review certain exhibits that I
mai nt ai ned t he | ndependent Counsel had introduced into evidence
representing themto be things they were not, you undertook to
represent to nme that you had reviewed the materials | had
provi ded you and were unconvi nced of ny conclusions. Mre
i nportant, you undertook to provide nme with docunents that you



represented to be true copies of the docunents that | had asked
to exam ne. \Wen a governnent official has responded in this
manner to an inquiry of a citizen, the governnent official has no
excuse whatever for failing to i medi ately provide a
clarification of the sort | requested. | think you recognized
that obligation by responding to ny letter of March 31, 1997

with your letter of April 3, 1997, stating that you were taking
ny March 31 letter under advisenent. As | have pointed out,
however, if representations you nade to ne were true, you shoul d
have known the answer to the question in ny March 31 letter
before | posed it, and even if the representati ons were not true,
you shoul d have been able to imediately determ ne the answer to
the question. In these circunstances, it is not possible to
believe that your failure yet to respond is a result of anything
but your desire to postpone as |ong as possible revelation of the
I ndependent Counsel 's m srepresentations concerning these
exhibits.

2. The Continuing Failure to Advise the Court That
I ndependent Counsel Attorneys Repeatedly Msled the
Courts Concerning Aristides Martinez's Know edge That
John Mtchell Was Involved Wth the Arama Proj ect

In the Nunn Appendi x | provided to you on Septenber 18,
1995, | explained how, after the court refused to allow the
I ndependent Counsel to elicit testinony that Aristides Martinez
had been told that John Mtchell was related to Deborah Gore Dean
and that she was an inportant person at HUD, the |Independent
Counsel decided not to argue that Mtchell's involvenent with the
Arama project was enphasized to Martinez, and instead to argue
that Mtchell's involvenent with the Arana project was conceal ed
fromMrtinez. Based on Martinez's interview of May 15, 1992, as
well as Nunn's testinony before the grand jury (including the
part of that testinony that the Independent Counsel used to
exam ne Nunn during trial), Independent Counsel attorneys knew
wi th absolute certainty that this claimwas false. | also
addressed that issue at page 22 of ny transmttal letter of
Sept enber 18, 1995.

In my letter to you dated Decenber 5, 1995 (at 7), | raised
the issue again noting that you had the obligation to reveal to
the court that |Independent Counsel attorneys had intentionally
sought to mslead it.

During the year that followed, you failed to bring to the
court's attention that or other matters where you nust have known
I ndependent Counsel attorneys had deceived the court. Though the
supposed conceal rent of Mtchell's involvenment with the Aranma
project fromthe Arama devel oper Martinez was one of the
princi pal points the |Independent Counsel had nade to the district
court and the court of appeals in previously seeking to uphold
the verdict on Count One, when recently arguing to uphold the
verdi ct on that count (which now concerned solely the Aranma
project), the Independent Counsel's brief made no reference to
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t hat supposed conceal nent. Possibly this failure reflected the
fact that the materials | had provided to you and the Departnent
of Justice nade clear not only that the claimwas fal se, but that
ot hers knew that you knew that the claimwas false. 1n any
event, however, the contentions renmai ned before the court as part
of what the |Independent Counsel had maintained to the district
court and the court of appeals to be justifications for a jury
verdi ct that you continued to seek to uphol d.

That the Independent Counsel had made this false claimto
the courts was recently raised as an issue in the defendant's
notion for a new trial. | also again nentioned it to you in ny
letter of February 26, 1997 (at 4). | raised the matter again in
my letter to you dated March 26, 1997 (at 6), there pointing out
to you that, assuming that it is a violation of 18 U S.C. § 1001
for government attorneys to deceive a court concerning a material
fact in a case they are presenting, the Independent Counsel's
actions concerning this matter certainly would violate that
statute.

| raised the matter again in ny letter to you dated March
31, 1997 (at 5-6), suggesting the possibility that, upon deciding
to falsely claimthat Mtchell's involvenent with Arama was
conceal ed from Martinez, |ndependent Counsel attorneys pulled
from Governnent Exhibit 25 the consul tant agreenment that, had it
actual ly been what the | ndependent Counsel represented it to be,
woul d have concl usively shown that the Martinez knew t hat
Mtchell was to receive half the Arama consultant fee.

In ny letter to you dated May 14, 1997 (at 3-5), | pointed
out with regard to the I ndependent Counsel's m srepresentations
concerning the copies of the Arama consultant agreenent
i ntroduced into evidence that, even if the |Independent Counsel
attorneys conducting the trial did not know that they were
m sl eading the court or did not consider the matter about which
they were knowi ngly m sleading the court to be material, that
woul d not affect whether your continuing conceal nent of the fact
that certain exhibits are not what the |ndependent Counse
represented themto be violates 18 U S.C. § 1001. That may have
been an overstatenment. The case that your continuing conceal nment
of the matter violates 18 U.S.C. 8§ 1001 is probably stronger
assum ng that the attorneys originally handling the case al so
violated the statute, though |I suggest that the case is strong
enough regardl ess of the culpability of those attorneys.

In any event, the sane considerations |argely apply here as
well. Thus, assune that the attorney originally handling the
case sonehow were not aware that they were deceiving the court in
maki ng the argunent that Mtchell's invol venent was conceal ed
fromMartinez or were not aware that they were violating 18
US. C 8 1001 in doing so. You have for quite sone tine known
that the claimconcerning the conceal nent of Mtchell's
i nvol verent with Arama from Martinez was false, and it has been
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repeatedly brought to your attention that under your own
interpretation of the court of appeals ruling in this case, that
effort to deceive the court violated 18 U S.C. § 1001. Further,
it is reasonable to assune that your continuing failure to inform
the court that your office deceived it concerning this matter is
notivated not solely by an interest in causing the court to
bel i eve sonething that would cause it to nore readily uphold the
verdict on Count One (as in the case of your predecessors);
rather, your actions are also notivated by an interest in
forestalling a cl ose exam nation of the conduct of your office
concerning matters that you nust by now know, if sonehow you did
not know | ong ago, very likely involve violations of federal |aw.

Hence, your culpability for the perpetuation of this attenpt to
deceive the court is nore certain and nore serious than that of
your predecessors.

3. The Continuing Failure to Advise the Court That
t he I ndependent Counsel Msled the Court in Its Recent

Filings
There are al so instances in the I ndependent Counsel's recent
filings of statements intended to deceive the court. In ny

letter to you of May 14, 1997, | suggested that you revi ew t hose
filings for instances where you are m sl eadi ng court by
suggesting that the Independent Counsel is conpronmised in
responding to certain issues that are only now being brought to
its attention for the first time. | noted that by letter dated
January 3, 1996, | advised you that the Independent Counsel had
failed to provide the defense with a copy of the interview report
of the Maurice Barksdale interview of March 22, 1993, citing to

t he I ndependent Counsel's own records, which | had previously
provided to you as Attachment 5e to the Park Towers Appendi X,
indicating that the interview report had not been provided to the
defense. In that letter, which was only two pages long, | also
advi sed you of your obligation to i mrediately provide a copy of
the interview report to the defense and to determ ne why it was
not previously provided.

You declined then to provide the interviewr report to the
defense or to advi se defense counsel that you had failed
previously to provide it. And when the failure to provide this
docunent at the tinme of trial was raised in the defendant's
notion for the dism ssal of Count One, after stating that the
defendant's delay in raising the issues in the notion had
conplicated the review of |Independent Counsel files, you
represented to the court that you have "been unable to determ ne
whet her [the Barksdale March 22, 1993 interview report] was
produced or not." In ny letter of May 14, 1997, | suggested that
you consi der whether this statenent was true and whether, in any
event, you were not intending to |l ead the court falsely to
believe that the |Independent Counsel was inpaired in its ability
to respond to the matter because the failure to provide the
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docunment was only now being brought to your attention for the
first time.

In addition, | believe it is evident fromthe menorandumin
support of the defendant's recent notion, but in any event it is
clear fromny letter to you dated March 26, 1997 (at 13-14), that
the effort to claimthat the February 1, 1985 nenorandum from
Deborah Gore Dean to Acting Assistant Secretary for Housing
Shirley Wseman showed that Ms. Dean had to approve Maurice
Barksdal e' s noderate rehabilitation decisions even in July 1984
was an effort to mslead the court, and that the |ndependent
Counsel 's description of the nenorandum as a 1984 nenorandum was
mani festly fal se.

Finally, in ny letter of March 26, 1997 (at 15-16), |
poi nted out that the statenent at page 9 of the Governnent's
Reply to Defendant Dean's Opposition to Government's Mdtion to
Stri ke Defendant Dean's Modtion for D smssal of the Superseding
Indictnent or for a New Trial, and to Strike the Menorandumin
Support (Mar. 3, 1997) that the Independent Counsel had nmade no
m sl eadi ng argunents in opposing the defendants's original notion
for a newtrial constituted your word of honor that you have
i nvestigated the matter and have concluded that in fact
I ndependent Counsel attorneys did not mi slead the court in
responding to Dean's notion. As | also pointed out in ny letter,
that representation is inpossible to believe. Hence, whether or
not you consider the representation to be your word of honor, it
is anot her matter concerning which you have a conti nui ng
obligation to alert the court that |ndependent Counsel attorneys
attenpted to deceive it.

Each of the matters di scussed under this heading invol ves
issues that are still before the court. As you know, however,
neither the matters addressed under this and the previous
headi ng, nor other matters to which | have given particul ar
attention in recent correspondence, conprise the totality of
matters where |Independent Counsel attorneys have undertaken to
deceive the courts. Wth regard to all such matters, including
those that | may know nothi ng about, let nme note | have taken for
granted that you understand that a government |awyer has an
obligation never to mslead a court and nust advise the court
whenever he discovers that attorneys in a case under his contro
attenpted to deceive it. | have refrained from observing that
this is sonething that soneone with your experience in governnent
shoul d know, because it is sonmething that a governnent attorney
shoul d know t he day he wal ks on the job or he ought not to be
gover nment attorney.

But if such is not your view of a government attorney's
obligations, it would be useful if you advise ne of that. It
woul d al so be useful if you would express that view in the fina
report on your investigation, describing as well the instances in
this or other prosecutions where the | ndependent Counsel believed
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that the public's interest in securing certain convictions
justified deceiving courts or juries in order to secure those
convi ctions.

| amuncertain, however, whether nmany governnent |awyers
actually appreciate that attenpting to deceive a court violates
18 U.S.C. 8 1001. Wat matters here is that, whether or not |
first brought that fact to your attention, you and your attorneys
certainly have known for sone tine that every action you take to
conceal or cover up a material fact within the jurisdiction of
the O fice of |Independent Counsel violates that statute. Again,
however, if there exist sone rationale that | have overl ooked
wher eby such actions would not violate that statute, | would
appreci ate your explaining that rationale to ne.

Until | amdissuaded fromny fromny current view about the
applicability of 18 U . S.C. 8§ 1001 to so many | ndependent Counse
actions in this case, | shall continue to point out instances
where | believe actions of Independent Counsel attorneys violated
that statute. | believe there is sone value in ny doing so
regardl ess of whether | thereby cause you or other |ndependent
Counsel attorneys to fulfill their obligations as representatives
of the United States Governnent.

Si ncerely,
/s/ Janmes P. Scanl an
Janes P. Scanl an
cc: Dianne J. Smth, Esq.
Deputy | ndependent Counsel

M chael A. Sullivan, Esq.
Associ at e | ndependent Counsel



